
  

  
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 
Monday, April 28, 2014 

5:30 p.m. 
 
 

I. Moment of Silence  
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
III.       Approval of the Minutes of the April 14, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
IV.  Approval of Agenda of the April 28, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
V.         Public Comment 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
VI.        Special Presentation – Proclamation Declaring May Bike Month 
              Presenter:  Mayor Junie White 
 
VII.      Other Business 
             
             A.  Award of Bid for Brookside Road Culvert Improvement Project 
                   Presenter:  Jay Squires, Storm Water Manager 
 
             B.   Hub-Bub Update 
                    Presenter: Cate Ryba, Executive Director 
 
             C.   Declaration of Vacancies on City Boards and Commissions 
                    Presenter:  Connie McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
VIII.     Executive Session to Discussion Possible Downtown Economic Development Project 
 
IX.        Resolution 
 
              A.   Authorizing a Development Agreement with SMR Hospitality II, LLC to Include    
                     Sale of Parcel 7-12-06-059.00 Under Certain Conditions 
                     Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
                                          SOUTH CAROLINA 

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 
Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a 
Public Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 
 
 
 
 



  

* City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter 
pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel 
matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item 
considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City Council. 
The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the designated 
time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 

 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
X.         City Council Updates 
 
XI.        Adjournment 

 

City Council Agenda 
Page Two – April 28, 2014 



  
 

          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

III.  



1 
 

  
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 
Monday, April 14, 2014 

5:30 p.m. 
(These minutes are subject to approval at the 

April 28, 2014 City Council Meeting) 
 

City Council met this date with the following members present: Mayor Junie White, Mayor pro 
tem Jan Scalisi, Councilmembers Erica Brown, Robert Reeder, and W. Sterling Anderson were 
in attendance. Councilmember Ryba was absent due to illness. Councilmember Jerome Rice, 
Jr. arrived at the meeting at 5:41 p.m. City Manager Ed Memmott and City Attorney Cathy 
McCabe were also in attendance. Notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in 
advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. All City Council meetings are recorded 
for a complete transcript. 
 
I. Moment of Silence - observed 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance - recited 
 
III.       Approval of the Minutes of the March 31, 2014 City Council Meeting – 
             Mayor pro tem Scalisi made a motion to approve the minutes as received.             
             Councilmember Reeder seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 
 
IV.  Approval of Agenda of the April 14, 2014 City Council Meeting –  
  Councilmember Reeder made a motion to approve the agenda as received. Mayor pro tem   
             Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 
 
V.         Public Comment - None 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
VI.        Resolutions 
             A.  To Determine Eligibility of 154 Magnolia Street for Special Property Tax  
                   Assessment for Rehabilitated Historic Property as Adopted by Ordinance of City  
                   Council on September 9, 2013 
                   Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 
                   Mr. Story presented the item to City Council as follows: 
                  “Last year City Council established by ordinance a mechanism, consistent with state     
                  code, which allows City Council to provide an advantaged property tax treatment for  
                  eligible historic properties when those properties are significantly rehabilitated according  
                  to historic standards. 



2 
 

       Spring and Magnolia LLC, an affiliated entity of Johnson Development Associates, has 
       invested approximately $1 million in acquisition and renovation of 154 Magnolia Street 
       which now serves as the corporate training facility for Pure Barre, a national enterprise 
       headquartered in Downtown Spartanburg.  This facility has already proven to have a   
       positive impact on business activity downtown. 
      As verified by the City’s preservation consultant, 154 Magnolia qualifies as an historic 
      structure and the renovations were conducted to historic standards.  The special assessment 
      would relieve the owners of a portion of the additional property tax liability created by the 
      acquisition and historic-standard renovation of the property for five years.  
      Staff recommends approval of the attached resolution.  Also provided for information are 
      the request letter from the owner, a statement from the City’s preservation consultant, and 
      the applicable ordinance.” 
                 Councilmember Reeder made a motion to approve the resolution as requested.   
      Councilmember Anderson seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 5 to 0. 

VII.      Other Business            
             A.  Proposed 2014 Street Resurfacing Project 
                   Presenter:  Tim Carter, Engineering Manager 
                   Mr. Carter presented the item to City Council as follows: 
                   “The City is eligible to receive funds for infrastructure improvements from the   
                   Spartanburg County Road Fee Program and the Spartanburg County Transportation   
                   Committee (“CTC”). Staff annually evaluates pavement conditions on City streets; this  
                   list contains the highest priority streets needing to be resurfaced.  For FY15, staff is  
                   recommending the attached list of streets.  If approved by Council, staff will received  
                   contractor proposals for resurfacing of the streets on this list. The estimated cost for the  
                   2014 street resurfacing project is $733,271.   
                   If approved by Council, staff will proceed with bid solicitation and return to Council for    
                   contract approval.  Before the project is awarded, staff will work carefully with residents  
                   on impacted streets to provide advance notice of work.  
                   Staff is requesting City council allow staff to accept contractor proposals for the 2014   
                   annually street resurfacing project. 
                   BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  Spartanburg County Transportation Committee has 
        approved $ 350,000 for this project. Spartanburg County Road Fee - $383,271.”  
                    

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

                     Mayor pro tem Scalisi made a motion to approve the proposed 2014 Street 
 Resurfacing Project as presented. Councilmember Anderson seconded the motion, 
 which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
             B.   5 – Year Comprehensive Plan, Public Hearing, and Council Consideration of    
                   Community Development Block Grant/HOME Budget Allocation 
                   Presenter:  Mitch Kennedy, Community Services Director 
 
              1.  Overview – see attached presentation for overview information 
 2.  Public Hearing – 
      Resolution Amending the FY14 Community Block Grant Budget – 
                            Mayor White declared the Public Hearing opened. He asked if there was anyone  
                            present to speak against or in favor of the proposed resolution.  
                            Hearing none, Councilmember Reeder made a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
      Mayor pro tem Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
                            Councilmember Reeder made a motion to approve the resolution as presented. 
      Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 3.  Public Hearing – 
      Resolution Allocating FY15 Community Development Block Grant and Home 
      Funds –  
      Mayor White declared the Public Hearing opened. He asked if there was anyone 
      present to speak against or in favor of the proposed resolution. 
      Hearing none, Councilmember Reeder made a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
      Mayor pro tem Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
      Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the resolution as presented.   
      Councilmember Brown seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
VIII.     City Council Updates 
              Councilmember Rice reminded everyone of the Easter Egg Hunts that would be held   
              the following weekend at Duncan and Barnet Parks. 
              Mayor pro tem Scalisi shared that she met with the Mary Black Foundation and Partners  
              for Active Living and she was excited about all the projects the non-profits were working on. 
              Councilmember Anderson thanked James Ledlow for the speed humps on Heather Drive              
              and for keeping him and the neighborhoods informed of what was going on. 
              Councilmember Brown shared that she had an opportunity to take part in the Farmer’s   
              Market and the Dog Park over the previous weekend. She encouraged everyone to get out  
              and enjoy the amenities of the city and the downtown area. 
              Councilmember Reeder reminded everyone of Music on Main and Jazz on the Square.  
 
IX.        Executive Session to Discuss Personnel Matters Regarding:  
              Councilmember Reeder made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session. Mayor pro tem  
              Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. Council convened to  
              Executive Session at 6:19 p.m. 
 
             A.  Annual Evaluation of City Manager – discussion with no decisions made 

 
       B.  Annual Evaluation of City Attorney – discussion with no decisions made 

  



4 
 

              Council reconvened to regular session at 7:48 p.m. Mayor White stated that discussion  
              was held with no decisions made. 
 
 X.        Adjournment – Councilmember Reeder made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mayor  
             pro tem Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. The meeting  
             adjourned at 7:48 p.m. 
 
 

 
 Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 

 



HUD Requires Grantees to Develop an 

Assessment of  Needs and  Projected 

Activities for next 5 Years 

Elements of Plan    

1.  Housing Market Assessment   

2.  Housing & Non-housing Needs 

3.  5-Year Strategies & Objectives  

4.  First Year (FY15) Annual Action
 Plan 

5.  Citizen Input  

 



Annual Action Plan 

Specific projects and other activities to be    
 carried out for a particular year 

Should be consistent with long-term 
 strategies and address priority needs 

Allocates resources (budget) for coming 
 year 

 



Assessment of  Current Conditions 

37,401 population  

Age: Median age of 33.7; 14.6% are 65 and older;  

Race: 49.3% African American; White 45.6%;  3.4% Latino  

8% unemployment 

Median Income $33,098; compared to South Carolina Median Income of               

 $44,623; County Median Income $43,421 

17% of the population earn less than $10,000/yr.; 25.9% live below poverty                  

 (compare to 13.2% statewide); 46.2% female head of household (compare to 

 35.6% statewide) 

19% receive SNAP benefits on last 12 months 

11.2% Businesses African-American Owned 
Data Source:  US Census 2010 and ACS 2008-2012 (Quick Facts- Estimates 2012) 



Assessment of  Current Conditions  

 

15,182 Households (28% Families with children under 18) 

Average household size of 2.27  

10,228 3yrs and older enrolled in School (3,324 in      

  Elementary, 2,054 high school, 3,984 college) 

81.6% have high school diploma or higher; compared to    

 84% statewide  

 
Data Source:  US Census 2010 and ACS 2008-2012 (Quick Facts- Estimates 2012) 



Assessment of  Housing Market 

17,516 housing units 

51.1% Homeownership Rate (2008-2010) 

Median Home Price - $115,500 

Aging Housing Stock - Over 75% built before 1980 

Approximately 150 single family structures are condemned  

6,950 Rental Units  - 70% of tenants pay more $500 month 

54% of Renters pay more than 30% of their income in housing costs   

33% of Home Owners pay more than 30% of their income in            
 housing costs 



Citizen Input  

As part of the planning process, the City held a citizen    

participation meeting Feb 27th at CC Woodson.  

Over 30 community leaders, citizens and non-profits 

shared key concerns and community priorities. 

Feedback from this participation meeting informed staff 

and assisted them in outlining key recommendations, which 

framed budget recommendations.  

 



What We Heard - Priority Needs 

removal of slum and blight 

new construction for home 

ownership opportunities 

rehab of owner occupied housing 

infrastructure improvements 

rental housing rehab 

community facilities -    

improvements and new 

construction 

Public Services  

financial literacy training 
programs 

home ownership counseling 
programs 

workforce development and 
job training programs  

economic development/  
business development and job 
creation  

Fair Housing Programs 

 



What We Heard - Geographic 

Priorities 

Beaumont Neighborhood 

Forest Park Neighborhood  

Highland Neighborhood 

South Converse Neighborhood 

Midtown Heights Neighborhood 

Northside Community 



Additional Public Review & 

Opportunity to Comment  

Full Five Year Consolidated and Annual Action Plan, CDBG, 

and/or HOME, is available at the Neighborhood Services Division, 

201 Caulder Ave. Suite 220, weekdays, between the hours of         

8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  

Will also be available on at www.cityofspartanburg.org. 

Citizens can also provide input through a community survey at 
http://www.cityofspartanburg.org/community-services/neighborhood-services 

 

 

http://www.cityofspartanburg.org
http://www.cityofspartanburg.org/community-services/neighborhood-services
http://www.cityofspartanburg.org/community-services/neighborhood-services
http://www.cityofspartanburg.org/community-services/neighborhood-services
http://www.cityofspartanburg.org/community-services/neighborhood-services
http://www.cityofspartanburg.org/community-services/neighborhood-services
http://www.cityofspartanburg.org/community-services/neighborhood-services
http://www.cityofspartanburg.org/community-services/neighborhood-services


  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

VII. A 



         
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager  
 
FROM: Jay Squires, Storm Water Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Brookside Road Culvert Improvement Project 
 
DATE: April 22, 2014 
 
BACKGROUND    
 
Staff received bids for the replacement of a culvert under Brookside Road. This project consists of removal and 
replacement of approximately 80 feet of storm drainage pipe from under Brookside Road, near the intersection 
with West Crescent Road. 
 
The following bids were submitted:   
 
Larry Green Grading, Inc. (Lyman, S.C.)     $49,110 
Martin & Son Contracting, Inc. (Spartanburg, S.C.)    $59,900 
P.A.R. Grading & Hauling, Inc. (Spartanburg, S.C.)               $77,700    
      
      
 
Staff has reviewed the bids and the qualifications for each of these contractors.  Based on that review, staff has 
determined that, Larry Green Grading, Inc is the responsive low bidder.   No bids were submitted from MWBE 
certified contractors.   It is anticipated that it will take 30 days (depending on weather) to complete this project.  
Staff will give neighborhood residents advance notice using door hangers and mailers. A portion of Brookside 
Road will be closed during construction for safety reasons. A detour route will be in place for convenience 
while the segment of road is closed.  
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
Allow staff to accept the bid from Larry Green Grading, Inc and authorize the City Manager to enter into a 
contract with, Larry Green Grading, Inc for the completion of the project.  
 

BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  
 
$ 49,110 from the Storm Water Utility fund will be used to complete the project.  
 
 

 
 

 



JOHN B WHITE SR. BLVD.

BROOKSIDE RD

W CRESCENT RD

BRIARCLIFF RD

WH
ITE

 O
AK

 R
D

JOHN B WHITE SR. BLVD.

µProposed Project Site



  
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VII. C  























































  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

IX. A  



 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 
 
 
TO:  Spartanburg City Council  
 
FROM: Chris Story, Assistant City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Resolution to Authorize a Development Agreement with SMR Hospitality II, 

LLC to include sale of parcel 7-12-06-059.00 under certain conditions 
 
DATE: April 24, 2014 

 
 
As you know, the City owns several adjacent development sites behind the Marriott, the George, 
and the Chapman Cultural Center.  We consider this property to be of considerable strategic 
importance to the long term strength and viability of the downtown both economically and 
otherwise.  Therefore, we continue to move carefully toward identifying development 
opportunities that address the following goals: 

1. High-value taxable development that strengthens our revenue base and contributes to 
downtown business activity. 

2. Exhibit attractive, high quality urban design consistent with our downtown code. 
3. Consist of uses that are complementary in nature to the adjacent properties (Barnet Park, 

the Chapman Center, the George, the Marriott, the Montgomery Building, etc.) and are 
supportive of a full build-out of the city’s remaining property in the area. 

 
One of these development sites (parcel 7-12-06-059.00 – approximately 3 acres) shares a 
property line with, and is located immediately behind, the Marriott Hotel and Conference Center.   
 
The owners of the Marriott Hotel and 
Conference Center, Andy Cajka and Jimmy 
Gibbs, are interested in exploring a significant 
new mixed-use development on this parcel.  
Having recently completed several million 
dollars of upgrades to the Marriott and having 
now paid in full the City’s note on the hotel’s 
underground parking garage, they now believe 
the time is right to undertake a complementary 
project next door.  While the specifics of the 
new development are not known at this stage, 
we believe that such an effort is very likely to 
meet the goals described above.  
 



We further believe that maximizing the long-term positive impact of development of this 
property is far more important than the sales price of the land.  After much discussion with the 
potential developers, we believe we have identified a workable and mutually beneficial 
approach.   
 
We recommend that City Council commit to selling them this parcel for $1 if they construct a 
project with a taxable value of over $7 million (equating to approximately $2 million per acre).  
We think that in light of our resource limitations and other concerns discussed above, this is a 
reasonable way to incentivize an important potential project.  
 
 The attached resolution implements this approach.  We recommend your approval and welcome 
any questions you may have. 



RESOLUTION 
TO AUTHORIZE A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SMR 

HOSPITALITY II, LLC TO INCLUDE SALE OF PARCEL 7-12-06-059.00 
UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg (“City”) owns Spartanburg County Parcel # 7-
12-06-059.00, approximately 3.3 acres, (the “Property”), in the City directly behind the 
Marriott Hotel and Conference Center; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is interested in the sale of this Property if the sale would yield 
a high value project complimentary to neighboring development exhibiting attractive urban 
design and strengthening downtown economy that would provide a significant long-term 
boost to the City tax base; and 
 
 WHEREAS, SMR Hospitality II, LLC (“SMR”) is exploring the possibility of 
bringing a potential development that would either satisfy or exceed the characteristics 
described above; and 

   
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Members of City 
Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
 SECTION 1: To authorize the City Manager to execute a Development 
Agreement between the City and SMR Hospitality II, LLC enabling SMR to design, 
develop and construct improvements on the Property in manner consistent with the City’s 
interests described above, and establishing reasonable times for performance. 
 
 SECTION 2: To authorize the City Manager to convey the parcel for $1, if SMR 
constructs a development which is consistent with the Development Agreement and 
estimated to have a taxable appraised value in excess of $7 million. 
 
 SECTION 3: This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 
 This Resolution adopted this 28th day of April, 2014. 
 
     

 
_________________________________ 

       MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
By: __________________________ 
 City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: __________________________ 
 City Attorney 


